MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF THE ENVIRONMENT

GENERAL PERMIT FOR STORMWATER ASSOCIATED WITH CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY

Part I.

Part

TIEMMUOW>=mMOO >

Part Ill.

moow>»

Part IV.

WIODVOZEr A" IOIMMOO®

General NPDES Permit Number MDRC
State Dischar ge Permit Number 14GP

EFFECTIVE DATE: January 1, 2015 EXPIRATION DATBecember 31, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Table of Contents

1
COVERAGE UNDER THIS PERMIT 3
Permit Applicability to Areas in Maryland 3
Eligibility 3
Requiring an Individual Permit or an Alternati@eneral Permit 3
Authorization 4
Transfer of Authorization 4
NOTICE OF INTENT REQUIREMENTS 5
Deadlines for Notification 5
NOI Approval Process and Public Review Period 5
Notice of Intent 6
Failure to Notify 6
Contents of Notice of Intent 6
Fees 7
Where to Submit 7
Effective Date of Coverage 7
Notice of Termination 7
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 8
Prohibition on Non-Stormwater Discharges 8
Other Requirements for Erosion and Sedimenti@band Stormwater Management Plans 9
Releases in Excess of Reportable Quantities 9
Training of Personnel 9
Compliance with Other Laws 9

EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS, PREVENTION OF THE MHCHARGE OF SIGNIFICANT AMOUNTS OF

SEDIMENT, MONITORING, RECORDS, AND REPORTING REQUHMENTS 10
Effluent Limitations 10
Prevention of the Discharge of Significant Amtauof Sediment 10
Monitoring and Records 12
Reporting Requirements 13
CONSISTENCY WITH TOTAL MAXIMUM DAILY LOADS 13
STANDARD PERMIT CONDITIONS 13
Duty to Comply 13
Continuation of Coverage under This General ®term 14
Continuation of the Expired General Permit 14
Need to Halt or Reduce Activity Not a Defense 14
Duty to Mitigate 14
Proper Operation and Maintenance 14
Bypass 14
Upset 14
Duty to Provide Information 15
Other Information 15
Certification 15
Signatory Requirements 15
Liabilities Under Other Laws 15
Property Rights 15
Severability 15
Transfers 15
Inspection and Entry 15
Civil Penalties for Violations of Permit Conditis 16
Criminal Penalties for Violations of Permit Cdtiahs 16

1



T.
u.

Part VII.
Part VIII.
Part IX.

Administrative Penaltie®r Violations of Permit Conditions
Permit Actions

REOPENER CLAUSE

AUTHORITY TO ISSUE DISCHARGE PERMITS
DEFINITIONS

17
17

17
17
17



PART |. COVERAGE UNDER THISPERMIT
A. Per mit Applicability to Areasin Maryland

This permit covers all areas of the State of Margla

B. Eligibility
1. What this permit covers:

This permit covers all new and existing stormwalischarges that are composed in whole or
in part of discharges associated with construaictivity [as defined by 40 Code of Federal
Regulations (40 CFR), Section 122.26 (b)(14)(x) 8edtion 122.26(b)(15)(i); see Part IX.3
for further definition of “construction activity”].This permit is not an alternative for and does
not take the place of any local permits or ordimsnequired by Maryland law or regulation
or by the county or municipality that has jurisabatwhere the construction activity occurs,
including but not limited to a grading permit, amsand sediment control plan approval, or
stormwater management plan approval.

2. Persons eligible for coverage:

To be eligible for coverage under this general pigrperson, alone or with other persons
who are also permittees, must have control of grenfited activities on the site. Such
control of permitted activities includes, but ig timited to, authority to direct those working
on the site to take actions to comply with the geroorrect violations (including repair or
installation of erosion and sediment controls),/antialt construction activity until violations
of the permit are corrected.

3. Facilities with a permit for a non-stormwater diagje:

a. Stormwater discharges associated with construetidinity at facilities which have a
permit for a discharge other than stormwater caodvered by this general permit, an
alternative general permit, or, at the discretibthe Director, an existing individual
permit may be amended to cover stormwater disclaggociated with construction
activities.

b. Earth disturbance for the purposes of preparaticites for mineral mining or coal
mining is not eligible for coverage under this Gah®ermit. Such sites may require
coverage under other General Permits or indivigeamits specifically designated for
discharges from mineral mining and coal mining\atiis. Mining sites where
construction of structures or other non-mining tedadevelopment will occur as part of
reclamation, or any non-mining earth disturbandewang completion of mining
reclamation (unless otherwise ineligible for coggra must obtain coverage under this
General Permit if earth disturbance of one acnmare will occur.

c. Earth disturbance of one acre or more for the map@f construction of landfill cells or
other structures, roads, and appurtenances toillasygration must be covered under this
General Permit unless the Director has authoripegrage under a different permit or
general permit. For areas such as the interitaraffill cells where stabilization does not
occur, the permittee may terminate coverage oreéatidfill cell begins operating as a
landfill and accepting wastes.

C. Requiring an Individual Permit or an Alter native Gener al Per mit

1.

The Director may require any person authortzagthis permit to apply for and obtain either
an individual permit or coverage under an altexgatjeneral permit. Any interested person
may petition the Director to take action under frasagraph. The Director may require any
person authorized to discharge under this pern@pfay for an individual permit or obtain
coverage under an alternative general permit drihat person has been notified in writing
that such a change is required. This notice shelilde:

a. A brief statement of the reasons for this sleni

b. A statement setting a deadline for the notifiedson to file an application for an
individual permit or file a NOI in accordance withe terms of the alternative general
permit;



c. A permit application if applicable; and
d. For existing permittees, a statement thahereffective date of the individual

permit or the alternative general permit as it eggplo the individual permittee,

coverage under this general permit shall automgtitarminate.
The Director may grant additional time to sitthe application or NOI upon request of the
applicant. If the person so notified fails to sufbima timely manner an individual permit
application or an NOI for coverage under an altéveageneral permit as required by the
Director under this paragraph, then the individuedimittee's coverage under this permit is
automatically terminated at the end of the day i§ieelcin the Director's notification.
Any person authorized by this permit may esjuo be excluded from the coverage of this
permit by applying for an individual permit or fij an NOI for coverage under an alternative
general permit. The person seeking an individeamit shall submit an individual
application in accordance with the United Stategifenmental Protection Agency's (EPA)
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System [NE5S) regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 122,
with reasons supporting the request to the Direcldre person seeking coverage under an
alternative general permit shall file an NOI in @@tance with the terms of the alternative
general permit. A request for an individual perstiall be granted if the Director determines
that the reasons cited by the applicant are adedqaaupport the request. If the applicant
seeks coverage under an alternative general pehmiterms of that permit will determine
whether coverage under the alternative generaliperwbtained.
When an individual permit is issued to a prrstherwise covered by this permit, the
applicability of this permit to the individual peittee is automatically terminated on the
effective date of the individual permit. Similarlyhen a person subject to this permit obtains
coverage under an alternative general permit, pipiability of this permit is terminated on
the effective date of the alternative general perviihen an individual permit is denied to an
applicant otherwise covered by this permit, ordpgplicant is denied coverage under the
terms of an alternative general permit, the appllits of this general permit to the permittee
may be terminated by MDE.

D. Authorization.

1.

A person planning construction activity must havkmitted an NOI and received from the
Administration documentation of general permit aage to be authorized to discharge
stormwater under this general permit.

Emergency Authorization: A person who must con@acth-disturbing activities prior to
obtaining general permit coverage in responsepiobdic emergency (e.g., natural disaster,
widespread disruption in essential public servicas)l the related work requires immediate
authorization to avoid imminent endangerment to &imealth, public safety, or the
environment, or to reestablish essential publigises, must obtain emergency authorization
from the Director within 24 hours after initiatiegrth-disturbing activities. The person must
obtain such emergency authorization in writing iar electronic mail. If the Director denies
emergency authorization, the person must immedgiatabilize earth disturbance and
complete the authorization process under Part labdve before resuming earth disturbance.
Where circumstances allow, it is recommended thraon obtain emergency authorization
prior to initiating earth-disturbing activities. gerson with emergency authorization is
authorized to discharge on the condition that agleta and accurate NOI is submitted within
7 calendar days after commencing earth-disturbatigiies, and must ultimately complete

all requirements to obtain regular coverage urnigeigeneral permit. The person must provide
a copy of the emergency authorization with the NOI.

E. Transfer of Authorization.

1.

Transfer of control of permitted activities at gite. A person submitting an NOI or holding
general permit coverage who does not intend torabtite permitted activities on the site
shall, prior to relinquishing control, transfer laotization under this permit to a duly
authorized person who will control the permittethaties. The transfer shall become
effective upon receipt by the Administration of@ampleted Transfer of Authorization form,
signed by both the transferor and transferee. oRemhay also submit a Transfer of
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Part I1.
A.
1.
2.
3.
4,
B.
1.

Authorization through the electronic system desigddy the Administration. The Transfer
of Authorization form shall include a specific statent that the transferree will abide by all
conditions of the erosion and sediment control plath stormwater management plan.

2. Obligations of the permittee. The permittee ("sfanor") must familiarize the person who is
assuming control of the permitted activities ("sfamee") with the program and provide the
transferee/new owner with copies of: this geneeainit; the documentation from the
Administration that the site has coverage undegtreeral permit; and the NOI submitted for
the site. All conditions and obligations outlinedhis general permit shall apply to the new
permittee/owner upon transfer. See Part IV.Ct5doordkeeping requirements applicable to
the transferor following transfer.

NOTICE OF INTENT REQUIREMENTS
Deadlines for Notification.

For construction activity beginning on or after Jary 1, 2015:

Persons who intend to obtain coverage for a stotemveischarge associated with construction
activity under this general permit shall submitN(@I in accordance with the requirements of this
Part and shall not perform any land disturbing\atidis prior to receiving from MDE
documentation of coverage under the general peexigpt in emergency situations as authorized
by MDE under Part I.D.2.

For construction activity beginning prior to anchtiouing on or after January 1, 2015, and
holding valid coverage under a previous versiothsf general permit:

Permittees whose projects are currently covere@uagrevious version of the general permit
must submit a complete NOI (and fee, if applicalide)coverage under this general permit by
December 31, 2014. Projects meeting this deadim@at subject to the conditions of Part 11.B.2
and 3. Permittees who submit an NOI by the deadiieeconsidered covered by this General
Permit while MDE reviews the NOI. After review, MDwill provide documentation granting
coverage under this general permit or provide eaticdenial of coverage.

Projects for which the permittee does not subnoidraplete NOI (and fee, if applicable) by
December 31, 2014, do not have permit coveragé denmary 1, 2015, and must reapply for
coverage as a new project.

For construction activity beginning prior to anchtiouing on or after January 1, 2015, and
holding valid coverage under an individual permiDE will determine the eligibility of the

project for coverage under this permit. If thejpabis eligible, the permittee shall submit an NOI
by the deadline issued by MDE. Projects meetiigydbadline are not subject to the conditions of
Part I1.B.2 and 3. Projects not meeting the deadlio not have permit coverage as of the
expiration date of the individual permit, and megsipply for coverage as a new project.

Persons who intend to increase the number of dlcagsvill be disturbed at the site beyond that
stated in the documentation of coverage under ¢nermgl permit must contact the Administration
to request a modification to the permit coverager increases of one acre or more, the process to
modify the permit coverage shall be the same aaridnitial NOI. The permittee must have
general permit coverage for the increased acreefpeebbeginning earth disturbance on it.

NOI Approval Process and Public Review Period

Certification of Erosion and Sediment Control Submission to Approval Authority. Maryland
Department of the Environment (MDE) will begin pessing a Notice of Intent (NOI) to be
covered under this general permit when the applipeovides certification that a final erosion and
sediment control plan (ESC plan) was submittedhéoappropriate approval authority in
accordance with COMAR 26.17.02.09 E(4) and 26.1901If an NOI is submitted before the
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ESC plan is submitted to the approval authority, BRIl not accept it for processing and will
send notice to the applicant that the NOI is inclatepand will not be processed until the required
information is provided. MDE will regularly post information on the NOI system website to
include all NOls submitted during the previous week

Public Notification Period. In order to provide opportunity for public rew of plans for sites to
be covered by this permit, MDE will not act on N@ds construction sites during a minimum 14-
day period that begins on the date the NOI infoiomaits posted on the NOI system website.
After 14 days have elapsed and following MDE’s iptef notification from the applicant
demonstrating that the ESC plan for the projectideges approved by the appropriate approval
authority MDE will make every reasonable effortthvim 48 hours of said 14-day period, to issue
notification that the site is covered under theegahpermit for stormwater associated with
construction activities, with the exception desedbn paragraph 3 of this section. If an NOI is
submitted to MDE after the appropriate approvahairity has already approved an ESC plan,
MDE will provide for public notification of the suhission of the NOI, but will not act on the NOI
for 14 days. If no adverse comments are receivethg the 14 days, then the NOI will be
processed like all other NOls.

Exception to NOI Approval Process. If MDE receives, prior to issuance of Generalnkie
coverage, a request from any person that the siteduired to obtain an individual permit with a
detailed, written explanation as to why the ESQ fiédls to meet State erosion and sediment
control or stormwater management standards, MDEdwithe following: (i) notify the general
permit applicant that a request that an indivigagzmit be required has been received, (ii)
evaluate the information, and (iii) make a decisamd send notification of that decision to the
NOI applicant and the person requesting that aivithaal permit be required as described in
Section I.C.

Persons who obtain coverage under this generalipghail, prior to commencing construction,
develop and obtain approval from appropriate apgrauthority of: (i) erosion and sediment
control plans in accordance with the requiremestaldished in Title 4, Subtitle 1 of the
Environment Article, Annotated Code of Maryland @8eent Control); and in Code of Maryland
Regulations (COMAR) 26.17.01 (Erosion and Sedin@ontrol); and (ii) stormwater
management plans (unless exempted by the follolaiwgr regulation or obtaining a proper
waiver from the approval authority) in accordangthwthe requirements established in Title 4,
Subtitle 2 of the Environment Article, Annotateddecof Maryland (Stormwater Management);
and in COMAR 26.17.02 (Stormwater Management).déscribed in Section VI.A., permittees
must comply with the requirements of the erosioth sediment control plans and stormwater
management plans.

Notice of Intent. The applicant shall submit to the AdministrateanNOI to be covered under this
general permit. The NOI must be accompanied byfpopriate fee required by the Administration
and established in State regulations to be coreidesmplete. The applicant shall submit the NOI in
either the electronic or paper format designatethbyAdministration. An applicant may submit an
NOI form in accordance with the requirements of fhart after the applicable deadline. In such
instances, an enforcement action for any stormwdiseharges associated with the construction
activity occurring prior to notification may be &k

Failureto Notify. Persons who disturb earth as part of a constnuetttivity, fail to obtain coverage
under an NPDES stormwater discharge permit asnmedjhierein, and discharge pollutants to waters
of the United States without a permit, are in \iola of the Clean Water Act (CWA). Persons who
disturb one acre or more of earth, fail to obtaimerage under an NPDES stormwater discharge
permit as required herein, and discharge pollutintgaters of the State are in violation of Secden
413 and 9-322 of the Environment Article, Annotat&atle of Maryland.

Contents of Notice of Intent. The NOI shall include, but not be limited to, fodowing:
1. The site's name, mailing address, and geluaration;
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The site's latitude and longitude (to the esat5 seconds);

A map of the site;

The permittee's name and signature, addedephibne number, and principal contact;

A brief project description, including exiggiand proposed land uses;

Standard Industrial Classification (SIC);

The name of the closest named receiving wéifetee discharge is to a municipal separate

storm sewer system, the name of the municipal systed the receiving waters shall be

supplied);

8. A confirmation that the permittee has compdhedeventual receiving waters with the
Maryland 303(d) list, the date on which the comgamitook place, and a statement as to
whether the eventual receiving waters are listetherB03(d) list as impaired for sediment.
Indicate the name and location of the impaired mgate

9. The total site area, the total proposed digtiiarea, the type(s) of stormwater management
best management practice(s) (BMP) proposed, antbthledrainage area to be controlled
by each type of BMP; and

10. Permit number of any other NPDES Permit egldd this site.

Nogakwn

F. FEees. An NOI fee is required with the submission of t@I, unless the applicant obtained coverage
under the previous General Permit on or after J3nlia?013, and that coverage is in effect on
December 31, 2014. The fee schedule is basedeasizé of the total planned disturbance. The
applicant must determine the appropriate fee tpdie from the fee schedule set in State regulations

G. Whereto Submit. Applicants shall submit NOls for coverage undes general permit either
through the electronic system designated by theiAidtnation or via mail to the Administration at
the following address:

The Maryland Department of the Environment

Water Management Administration

P.O. Box 2057

Baltimore, Maryland 21203-2057
Persons intending to discharge stormwater assdovta construction activity must submit erosion
and sediment control and stormwater managemens plaaccordance with procedures established
in, and to the approving authorities identifiedtime laws and regulations cited in Part I.B.4toé t
general permit.

H. _Effective Date of Coverage. Coverage under this general permit is effectivelescribed in Part II.
A. The effective date for Transfer of Authorizatishall be in accordance with Part I.E. Coverage
under this general permit will expire when the GahPermit is reissued or expires, when a Notice of
Termination form has been completed and receivetthdydministration, or when the
Administration administratively terminates coverdgea site, whichever occurs first.

. Noticeof Termination. When all portions of a site have been permanesttiljilized as defined
herein, and all stormwater discharges from constmsites that are authorized by this permit are
eliminated, the authorized permittee of the facifitust submit a Notice of Termination form, which
may be obtained through the electronic system dasig by the Administration, on MDE’s website,
or upon request to MDE.

1. The Notice of Termination shall include, bot be limited to, the following:

a. The mailing address and location of the dantbn site for which notification is
submitted. Where a mailing address is not available location can be described in
terms of the latitude and longitude (to the neat&steconds) and Maryland Grid
Coordinates of the approximate center of the tgcili
The permittee's name, address, and telepmamber;

The name, address, and telephone number getieral contractor(s);

The NOI identification number;

The following certification statement, sigreedrequired by section VI.L. herein:

®ooo



"| certify under penalty of law that disturbed sadt the identified site have been permanently
stabilized in accordance with approved erosionssatiment control plans; that temporary
erosion and sediment controls have been removedlldye removed at an appropriate time;
and that all stormwater discharges associatedasitistruction activity from this site that are
authorized by this general permit have been elitathal understand that by submitting this
Notice of Termination, | am no longer authorizedltecharge stormwater associated with
construction activity by the general permit and tfiacharging pollutants in stormwater
associated with construction activity to watershef United States is unlawful under the Clean
Water Act where the discharge is not authorizedmWPDES permit. | understand that | must
maintain the records described in Part IV.C.4 ef@eneral Permit for three years from the date
of this Notice of Termination. | understand thaalve the duty to provide information in Part
VI.I. during this record retention period. | alsnderstand that the submittal of this Notice of
Termination does not release the permittee frohiliig for any violations of this permit or the
Clean Water Act which may have occurred at this.'sit
2. The permittee shall transmit the completed Mot Termination form through the electronic

system designated by the Administration or via nmathe following address:

The Maryland Department of the Environment

Compliance Program

Water Management Administration

1800 Washington Blvd., Suite 420

Baltimore, MDE 21230-1708

Part IIl. SPECIAL CONDITIONS
A. Prohibition against Non-Stor mwater Dischar ges.

1. Alldischarges covered by this permit shalcbenposed entirely of stormwater, except as
provided below in paragraph 4.

2. Discharge of material other than stormwatertrbasn accordance with erosion and
sediment control and stormwater management plgm®ea@d in accordance with the laws
and regulations cited in Part Il. B.4. above.

3. Discharges of material other than stormwatedisied in paragraph 4 below must be in
compliance with an NPDES permit (other than thisypg issued for the discharge.
Stormwater or process water discharges from comenad asphalt plants, including batch
plants, are not authorized under this permit andtrhave coverage under the General
Permit for Discharges from Mineral Mines, Quarridsyrow Pits and Concrete and
Asphalt Plants or other individual permit. Disales of stormwater which has contacted
disturbed areas with known contamination by pofitgéather than sediment are not
authorized under this permit. The following disajes are also prohibited:

a. Wastewater from the washout of concrete, unlessagethby an appropriate control in
accordance with the 2011 Standards and Specificafar Soil Erosion and Sediment
Control, Section H-6.

b. Wastewater from washout and cleanout of stuccatpi@irm release oils, curing
compounds, and other construction materials.

c. Fuels, oils, or other pollutants used in vehicld aguipment operation and
maintenance.

d. Soaps or solvents used in vehicle and equipmertiings

4. The following non-stormwater discharges may ltharized by this permit provided the
non-stormwater component is a discharge from: denveg from construction
excavations, which must be managed by controlséoraance with the 2011 Standards
and Specifications for Soil Erosion and Sedimemt@m or any updated standards issued
by MDE (after their effective date); fire fightiragtivities; air conditioning condensate;
uncontaminated spring water; and foundation orifigodrains where flows are not
causing an erosive condition or contaminated witltess materials such as solvents.



B. Other Requirementsfor Erosion and Sediment Control and Stor mwater M anagement Plans.

1.

All plans for construction activity and any refsoprepared pursuant to this permit,
including self-inspection information, shall be é&hle to the public under Section 308(b)
of the CWA.

Upon request by the public, the permittee os@eicovered by this general permit shall
make such documents available. However, the perenihay claim applicable portions of
these documents as confidential in accordancedtitBode of Federal Regulations (CFR)
Part 2.

The permittee shall consider State listed wreatened, and endangered species habitat in
the design of the erosion and sediment control platcordance with the 2011 Standards
and Specifications for Soil Erosion and Sedimemt@n, Section A-4. If rare, threatened,
and endangered species habitat is identified, ¢nmittee shall contact the appropriate
approval authority to determine additional regutat@quirements.

C. Releasesin Excess of Reportable Quantities. In the event of a discharge of hazardous

substances or oil from a construction site, sushtdirge shall be minimized and/or contained in
accordance with the approved erosion and sedinwenitat and stormwater management plans.

1.

Where a release containing a hazardous sulestarail in an amount equal to or in excess
of a reporting quantity established under eitheC&®R 110, 40 CFR 117, or 40 CFR 302,
occurs during a 24 hour period:

a. The permittee shall notify the National Reg@o@enter (NRC) as soon as he or she
has knowledge of the discharge at 1-800-424-88@02¢267-2675 (in the
Washington, DC metropolitan area), in accordandk thie requirements of 40 CFR
110, 40 CFR 117, and 40 CFR 302;

b. The permittee shall notify the Maryland Depatt of the Environment as soon as he
or she has knowledge of the discharge. The contanbers are 410-537-3510
between 8AM - 5PM or after hours at (866) 633-4686

c. The permittee shall submit within 7 calendayslof knowledge of the release an
application for individual permit coverage in actance with the requirements of 40
CFR 122.26(c)(1)(ii), with a written descriptiontbi release, the circumstances
leading to the release, the nature and date okthase, and steps taken to control and
respond to the release. This application shoulsele to the Maryland Department of
the Environment, Water Management Administration;

d. The permittee shall, within 14 days of knovgeaf the release, modify the existing
erosion and sediment control and stormwater manageptans to identify and
provide for the implementation of steps to prevaard control the recurrence of such
releases or similar releases in the future, amdgpond to such releases. The permittee
shall also provide notification to the Maryland Rejnent of the Environment that the
erosion and sediment control plan and stormwaterag@ment plan modifications
have been completexhd approved by the appropriate approval authority.

Discharges of hazardous substances and altirgsfrom on-site spills are not authorized

by this permit.

No condition of this general permit shall rekeése permittee from any responsibility or

requirements under other environmental statuteésgulations.

Training of Personnel. The permittee must ensure that responsible persbotding a valid
certificate of attendance at training program ioadance with Environment Article § 4-104
are on site as required by the approved ErosiorSadiiment Control Plan. The permittee
must ensure that all site personnel are traineshtierstand aspects of permit and plan
compliance relevant to their specific duties, inihg but not limited to BMP
installation/maintenance and preventing and repgdpills and damaged BMPs.

Compliance with Other L aws. The permittee is advised that the applicatiofedflizer at
the site must comply with Agriculture Article § 834.




Part IV. EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS, PREVENTION OF THE DISCHARGE OF SIGNIFICANT
AMOUNTSOF SEDIMENT, MONITORING, RECORDING AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS

A. Effluent Limitations.

1.

The permittee must select, install, implemert maintain control measures (i.e., BMPs,
controls, practices, etc.) at the constructionthiéeé minimize pollutants in the discharge as
necessary to meet applicable water quality stasdafthe permittee must implement the
control measures from commencement of construetivity until permanent stabilization
is complete. In general, the stormwater controletigped, implemented, and updated
consistent with the laws and regulations citedant R.B.4. of this general permit are
considered as stringent as necessary to ensureiskhtrges covered by this permit do not
cause or contribute to an excursion above any ek water quality standard. As cited in
Part VI.A, the permittee must comply with approwgdsion and sediment control and
stormwater management plans as a condition of dgarmga with this permit, as well as

with federal effluent limitations at 40 CFR 450.2Rederal effluent limitations also require
the following:

a. The permittee must minimize the discharge dipeats from equipment and vehicle
washing, wheel wash water, pavement wash waterothed wash waters. Wash
waters must be treated in a sediment basin omalige control that provides
equivalent or better treatment prior to discharge.

b. The permittee must minimize the exposure ofdi materials, building products,
construction wastes, trash, landscape materiatflifers, pesticides, herbicides,
detergents, sanitary waste and other materialepres the site to precipitation and
stormwater. Minimization of exposure is not reqdine cases where the exposure to
precipitation and to stormwater will not resultardischarge of pollutants, or where
exposure of a specific material or product pod#es liisk of stormwater contamination
(such as final products and materials intended@door use). The permittee must
ensure that waste, garbage, and floatable delerisardischarged to receiving waters
by keeping exposed areas free of such materidly ortercepting them before they
are discharged.

c. The permittee must minimize the discharge ofupanhts from spills and leaks and
implement chemical spill and leak prevention arspomse procedures.

At any time after authorization, MDE may detarethat the permittee’s stormwater
discharges may cause, have reasonable potentialte, or contribute to an excursion
above any applicable water quality standard, occatesing or contributing to an
impairment of a waterbody [i.e., waterbodies lisssdmpaired on the Integrated Report for
Section 303(d)]. If such a determination is mad®Bvwill require the permittee to:

a. Modify the stormwater controls to adequatelyrads, achieve and document the
identified water quality concerns;

b. Submit valid and verifiable data and informattbat are representative of ambient
conditions and indicate that the receiving wateatiaining water quality standards;
and/or

c. Cease discharges of pollutants from constru@mivity and submit an individual
permit application according to Part I.C.

B. Prevention of the Dischar ge of Significant Amounts of Sediment. In addition to Part IV.A.

above, the permittee must take all reasonable messoprevent the discharge of significant
amounts of sediment to surface waters, or conveyaystems leading to surface waters,
particularly in the Chesapeake Bay watershed onirad waterways.

1.

Conditions indicating discharge of significant amtsuof sediment include, but are not
limited to, the following:
a. Earth slides or mud flows;
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b. Concentrated flows of stormwater such as rillsjlets or channels that cause
erosion when such flows are not filtered, settledtherwise treated to remove

sediment;

C. Turbid flows of stormwater that are not filteredttied or otherwise treated to reduce
turbidity;

d. Deposits of sediment at the construction site @aarthat drain to unprotected
stormwater inlets or catch basins that dischargeetly to surface waters;

e. Deposits of sediment from the construction sitguohblic or private streets outside of
the permitted construction activity;

f. Deposits of sediment from the construction siteaoy adjacent property outside of

the permitted construction activity; or

g. Discharges from the construction site to municgmalveyances, curbs and gutters,
or streams running through or along the site whimgal observations show that the
discharges differ from ambient conditions in tewhsurbidity so as to indicate
significant amounts of sediment present in them.

2. If the permittee observes any of the triggeergnts described in Section IV.B, above, or if
any person informs the enforcement authority or Mid& triggering event and the
enforcement authority or MDE informs the permittieat one or more of the triggering
events was verified, the permittee must underta&ddllowing actions and record the dates
and results of these actions in an onsite logbook.

a. Within one day the permittee shall inspectieroand sediment control practices to
verify compliance with its approved Plans. Anyidieicies, including, but not
limited to, failure to follow the approved sequeméeonstruction, failure to
maintain approved buffers, grading beyond the lwhitlisturbance, or any approved
sediment and erosion controls found to be missmgroperly installed or in need of
maintenance must be corrected immediately and reayphsidered to be a violation
of this permit until such time that they are coteelc

b. If the site is found to be in compliance with approved Plans, the permittee shall,
by the next business day, contact the ComplianogrBm of the Water Management
Administration in MDE, the enforcement authority fbe site (if it is not MDE), and
the appropriate approval authority for Erosion &ediiment Control and inform the
authorities about the conditions observed durimgiispection cited above. In
addition to any requirements imposed by the deézbahforcement authority or
MDE, the permittee shall, after notifying the emf®ment authority, implement any
of the following that are determined to be appratgrtowards the prevention of
further triggering events:

(1) Any change that may be approved in the field byitispector for the
enforcement authority for the site;

(2) Modifications to the Plans allowed as field modifions by the approval
authority;

(3) Performing temporary or permanent seeding of digtdrareas more frequently
than required by the approved Plan or regulation; o

(4) Increasing buffer distances.

The permittee shall implement any changes needseblban the above review within

four days after the triggering event is observed.

3. If additional triggering events are observed, flermittee shall, through its site engineer,
determine if the Erosion and Sediment Control Rlagh Stormwater Management Plan are
adequate, or whether additional on-site practicggam modifications are required. Within
three days of the second observation of a triggegirent, the permittee shall contact the
Compliance Program of the Water Management Adnmatisin in MDE, the enforcement
authority for the site (if it is not MDE), and tlgproval authority for the Plans and advise

them that:
a. The permittee observed a triggering event;
b. The event happened despite the fact that er@sid sediment controls were properly

installed and maintained; and
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c. The permittee is reviewing plans and will afféihe approval authority the
opportunity to concurrently review them.

The permittee’s review of plans shall begin witttiree days of the triggering event. The

permittee must submit revised plans to the apprawtiority no later than 14 days after

the second observation of a triggering event. Jdrenittee must obtain approval of the

revised Plans from the approval authority and bagplementation of the changes

immediately upon approval.

C. Monitoring and Records.

1.

After the first earth disturbance occurs ondite, and thenceforth during the entire period
of permit coverage whether the site is active aciive, the permittee shall conduct
inspections of the permitted area. The personégdcting the site may be a person on the
permittee’s staff or a third party hired or arrathge conduct inspections. The person
conducting the inspection must hold a valid cexdifé of attendance at training program for
responsible personnel as required by Section 46)@4(the Environment Article, unless
the erosion and sediment control plan approvalaiithhas waived the requirement for a
Certificate of Training in accordance with Sectibi04(c) of the Environment Article.

The permittee shall conduct inspections at the@¥dlhg intervals:

a. Once each calendar week (Sunday to Saturdagpeas in c;

b. The next day after a rainfall event resultingunoff, except as in c;

c. For areas meeting stabilization requirementS@MAR 26.17.01.07.B.6(f) and the
erosion and sediment control plan, once per mahtiofistruction activity resumes in
such a portion of the site at a later date, thepaoton frequency immediately increases
to that required in a and b; the permittee mustidaemt the beginning and ending
dates of the period of stabilization in its inspattrecords); and

d. Asrequired in Part IV.B.

After the first earth disturbance occurs ondite, and thenceforth during the entire period
of permit coverage whether the site is active aciive, the permittee shall post, at a safe,
publicly accessible location in close proximitytk® project site, a notice of permit
coverage, including the project name as listecherpermit, the permittee, the words
“General Permit for Stormwater Associated with Gantion Activity”, and the permit
number.

During the entire period of permit coverage, ghemittee shall maintain the following
records, which shall be on-site and available wthersite is active::

a.The approved erosion and sediment control planapipeoved stormwater management
plan, a copy of this General Permit, a copy ofNi@, a copy of the general permit
coverage document from the Administration, andyadf transfer of authorization
documents (if applicable).

b.Written reports of all inspections conducted bypkemittee. The permittee shall use the
standard written report form as provided by MDEheTpermittee shall complete all
applicable portions of the form, and may attachitamtthl information to the form. The
permittee shall ensure that the report includes:

(1) the date and time of the inspection;

(2) the name(s) of the individual(s) who perforntieel inspection;

(3) whether significant amounts of sediment wergepbed as described in Part
IV.B, Prevention of the Discharge of Significant Aomts of Sediment, above;

(4) an assessment of the condition of erosion addrent controls and how any
deficiencies were or are being addressed;

(5) adescription and date of any erosion and sexlirontrol implementation and
maintenance performed, including identificatioreaf/ controls that have not
been installed as required; and

(6) a description of the site's present phase o$tcoction.
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4. For a period of three (3) years from the da#¢ ¢feneral permit coverage for the site is

terminated, the permittee shall maintain the foltaywecords:

a.the NOI and records of all data used to complezeN®I;

b.self-inspection reports;

c.all inspection reports and enforcement actionsedga the permittee from any appropriate
enforcement or approval authority, including MDEg telegated enforcement authority, or
the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency; and

d. a copy of the Notice of Termination (after it iepared).

5. When a permit is transferred, the original pie@ must maintain the records in Part
IV.C.4 above that document the permit activity aphte date of transfer. The original
permittee must maintain those records for threg/€dfs from the date of transfer. Both the
original permittee and the new permittee must naaind copy of the Transfer of
Authorization document.

6. The permittee shall ensure that samples andunements taken for the purpose of
monitoring are representative of the monitoredvégti If the director requires monitoring at a
site covered by this permit, the permittee shadl m®nitoring procedures that are sufficiently
sensitive to meet an imposed limit, in accordanitk federal regulations at 40 CFR
122.44(i)(1)(iv). Records of monitoring informatiomust include:

a. the date, exact place, and time of samplingeasurements;

b. the individual(s) who performed the samplingrezasurements;

c. the date(s) analyses were performed;

d. the individual(s) who performed the analyses;

e. the analytical techniques or methods used;

f. the results of such analyses; and

g. all calibration and maintenance records andradinal strip chart recordings for

continuous monitoring instrumentation.

D. Reporting Requirements. The permittee shall submit, upon request by MIDE information
maintained in accordance with Part IV.C. to:

The Maryland Department of the Environment
Water Management Administration
Compliance Program

1800 Washington Blvd, Ste 420

Baltimore, Maryland 21230-1708

Part V. CONSISTENCY WITH TOTAL MAXIMUM DAILY LOADS
If the discharge covered by this permit enters teiaith an established or approved Total Maximum
Daily Load (TMDL), including the Chesapeake Bay TMBnd the Maryland Watershed
Implementation Plan, the permittee must implemesasares to ensure that the discharge of pollutants
from the site is consistent with the assumptiorisrarets the requirements of the approved TMDL,
including any specific wasteload allocation thas baen established that would apply to the disgharg

Part VI. STANDARD PERMIT CONDITIONS
A. Duty to Comply. Itis a condition of this permit that the permétcomply with erosion and

sediment control and stormwater management plagm®ea@d in accordance with the laws and
regulations cited in Part 11.B.4, above, and willicanditions of this general permit. If MDE
adopts applicable requirements after the effeaate of this permit, including but not limited to
revised Standards and Specifications for Soil Brosind Sediment Control, the permittee must
comply with those requirements by the deadlindarh in those requirements. Violations of
plans for construction activity, including appli¢atiErosion and Sediment Control and
Stormwater Management Plans, constitute violatafrthis permit, State law, and the CWA.
Violations of this permit are grounds for enforcemnaction; for permit termination, revocation,
reissuance, or modification; or for denial of amigrenewal.
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H.

Continuation of Coverage under This General Permit. Once construction has commenced, it
is a condition of this permit that erosion and seatit control and stormwater management plan
approvals be kept in effect. Construction activitsty not continue if these plans have expired,
but may resume once plans are renewed without patyofie@n additional fee as long as
coverage under this General Permit is still in &tffe
Continuation of the Expired General Permit. An expired general permit continues in force
and effect until a new general permit is issued.
Need to Halt or Reduce Activity Not a Defense. It shall not be a defense for a permittee in an
enforcement action that it would have been necgdedralt or reduce the permitted activity in
order to maintain compliance with the conditionghe$ general permit.
Duty to Mitigate. The permittee shall take all reasonable stepseeent or minimize the
environmental or human health impact caused byd&tharge allowed by this general permit.
Proper Operation and Maintenance. The permittee shall at all times properly opeeatd
maintain all systems of treatment and control (aatated appurtenances) which are installed or
used by the permittee to achieve compliance wighctinditions of this permit. Proper operation
and maintenance also includes adequate laboratotyots and appropriate quality assurance
procedures. Proper operation and maintenance requires thellizsdn and operation of backup,
auxiliary, or similar systems or controls, by arpgtee when necessary to achieve compliance
with the conditions of the permit.

Bypass

1. Definitions.

a. Bypass means the intentional diversion of wsisgams from any portion of a
treatment facility.

b. Severe property damage means substantial physicege to property, damage to the
treatment facilities which causes them to becoropénable, or substantial and
permanent loss of natural resources which can nadadpbe expected to occur in the
absence of a bypass. Severe property damage doe®an economic loss caused by
delays in production.

2. Bypass not exceeding limitations. The permittes allow any bypass to occur which does
not cause effluent limitations to be exceeded dnly if it also is for essential maintenance to
assure efficient operation.

3. Notice—

a. Anticipated bypass. If the permittee knowsdaamnce of the need for a bypass, the
permittee must submit prior notice, if possibléeaist ten days before the date of the
bypass.

b. Unanticipated bypass. The permittee must subatite of an unanticipated bypass as soon
as possible to the time when it is known, but ircase longer than 24-hours after learning
of the event.

4. Prohibition of bypass.

a. Bypass is prohibited, and MDE or EPA may tak®reement action against the
permittee for bypass, unless:

(1) Bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of fisgsonal injury, or severe property
damage;

(2) There were no feasible alternatives to the bgpsauch as the use of auxiliary
treatment facilities, retention of untreated wastesnaintenance during normal
periods of equipment downtime. This condition i$ satisfied if adequate back-up
equipment should have been installed in the exexfiseasonable engineering
judgment to prevent a bypass which occurred durargnal periods of equipment
downtime or preventive maintenance; and

(3) The permittee submitted notices as required.

b. MDE or EPA may approve an anticipated bypadsr abnsidering its adverse effects,
if MDE or EPA determines that the bypass meetghhee conditions listed above.

Upset
1. Definition. Upset means an exceptional incidenwhich there is unintentional and

temporary noncompliance with technology based pezffiuent limitations because of
factors beyond the permittee’s reasonable conmlupset does not include noncompliance
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to the extent caused by operational error, impigmkrsigned treatment facilities, inadequate
treatment facilities, lack of preventive maintenanar careless or improper operation.

2. Effect of an upset. An upset constitutes anmrafitive defense to an action brought for
noncompliance with such technology based permiiexfit limitations if the requirements of
Part VI.H.3, below, are met. No determination mddeng administrative review of claims
that noncompliance was caused by upset, and bafoaetion for noncompliance, is final
administrative action subject to judicial review.

3. Conditions necessary for a demonstration oftugspermittee who wishes to establish the
affirmative defense of upset must demonstrate uthingproperly signed, contemporaneous
operating logs, or other relevant evidence that:

a. An upset occurred and that the permittee cartifgghe cause(s) of the upset;
b. The permitted facility was at the time beingpgedy operated;

c. The permittee submitted notice of the upsetgaired; and

d. The permittee complied with any required remetieasures.

4. Burden of proof. In any enforcement proceedihg,permittee, as the one seeking to
establish the occurrence of an upset, has the bufderoof.

Duty to Provide Information. The permittee shall furnish to the Director, with reasonable

time, any information which the Director may requesdetermine whether cause exists for

modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminatihgstpermit or to determine compliance with
this permit. The permittee shall also furnish te Birector upon request copies of records
required to be kept by this permit, State law,haer CWA.
Other Information. When the permittee becomes aware that he oradled to submit any
relevant facts or submitted incorrect informatiarthe NOI or in plans approved in accordance
with the laws and regulations cited in Part Il. Bhé or she shall promptly submit such facts or
information to the Director or the appropriate ptadiew authority.
Certification. Any person signing documents under this secti@il provide certification in
accordance with the laws and regulations identifieBart VI. L below.
Signatory Requirements. All submissions of reports, certifications oranmation shall be
signed in accordance with requirements establigh&itle 4, Subtitle 1 of the Environment
Article, Annotated Code of Maryland (Sediment Col)irCOMAR 26.17.01 (Erosion and
Sediment Control); Title 4, Subtitle 2 of the Emriment Article, Annotated Code of Maryland
(Stormwater Management); and COMAR 26.17.02 (StaatewManagement). All Notices of
Intent shall be signed as follows:
For a corporation: by a responsible corporateeff
For a partnership or sole proprietorship: by aegal partner or the proprietor, respectively;
For a municipality, State, federal, or other publgency: by either a principal executive
officer or a duly authorized official.

Liabilitiesunder Other Laws. Nothing in this permit shall be construed to jude the

institution of any legal action or relieve the pétee from any responsibilities, liabilities, or
penalties to which the permittee is or may be stthjader section 309 of the CWA, any
applicable State or Federal law, or regulation udehority preserved by section 510 of the
CWA.

Property Rights. The issuance of this permit does not convey aaperty rights of any sort,
nor any exclusive privileges, nor does it authoemg injury to private property nor any invasion
of personal rights, nor any infringement of FedeSahte or local laws or regulations.
Severability. The provisions of this permit are severable, idady provision of this permit, or
the application of any provision of this permitaioy circumstance, is held invalid, the
application of such provision to other circumsta@nd the remainder of this permit shall not
be affected thereby.

Transfers. This permit is not transferable to any persoregkafter notice to the Director in
accordance with Part I. E. above. As part of duahsfer, the Director may require separate
application for an individual permit as stated artR. C.

Inspection and Entry. The permittee shall allow the Director or arhauized representative of

EPA or the State who is assigned responsibilitigbé laws and regulations cited in Part Il. B.4.,

upon the presentation of credentials and othermeots as may be required by law, to:
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1. Enter upon the permittee's premises where a reglubattivity is located or conducted or
where records must be kept under the conditionkisfoermit;

2. Have access to and obtain copies at reasonable tifeny records that must be kept under
the conditions of this permit;

3. Inspect at reasonable times, without prior not&gy, construction site, facility, equipment
(including monitoring and control equipment), pieg$ or operations regulated or required
under this permit; and

4. Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the gaep of assuring permit compliance or as
otherwise authorized by the Clean Water Act, arbstances or parameters at any location.

Civil Penaltiesfor Violations of Permit Conditions. In addition to civil penalties for

violations of State water pollution control lawg &&rth in Section 9-342 of the Environment

Article, Annotated Code of Maryland, the Clean Waet and EPA regulations at 40 C.F.R.

Part 19 provide that any person who violates Se@&i®l, 302, 306, 307, 308, 318 or 405 of the

Act, or any permit condition or limitation implemtarg any such sections in a permit issued

under Section 402 of the Act or in a permit issuader Section 404 of the Act, is subject to a

civil penalty not to exceed $37,500 per day forhedolation. In the event that the sovereign

immunity of the United States and its agencies cdam¢spply, such penalties may be assessed
for violations.

Criminal Penaltiesfor Violations of Permit Conditions.

In addition to the criminal penalties for violat®of State water pollution control laws set forth

in Section 9-343 of the Environment Article, Annteth Code of Maryland, the Clean Water Act

provides that:

1. Any person who negligently violates Sectiod, 3802, 306, 307, 308, 311(b)(3), 318, or
405 of the Act, or any permit condition or limitai implementing any of such sections in a
permit issued under Section 402 of the Act, or peanit issued under Section 404 of the
Act, is subject to a fine of not less than $2,560more than $25,000 per day of violation,
or by imprisonment for not more than one year,ahbln the case of a second or
subsequent conviction for a negligent violatiopeason shall be subject to a fine of not
more than $50,000 per day of violation or by impnisient of not more than two years, or
both;

2. Any person who knowingly violates Section 3822, 306, 307, 308, 311(b)(3), 318, or
405 of the Act, or any permit condition or limitati implementing any of such sections in a
permit issued under Section 402 of the Act, or peanit issued under Section 404 of the
Act, is subject to a fine of not less than $5,000more than $50,000 per day of violation,
or by imprisonment for not more than three yeardyath;in the case of a second or
subsequent conviction for a knowing violation, aspa shall be subject to a fine of not
more than $100,000 per day of violation, or impmis@nt of not more than 6 years, or
both;

3.  Any person who knowingly violates Sections 3802, 306, 307, 308, 311(b)(3), 318, or
405 of the Act, or any permit condition or limitat implementing any of such sections in
a permit issued under Section 402 of the Act, @ permit issued under Section 404 of the
Act, and who knows at that time that he is pla@ngther person in imminent danger of
death or serious bodily injury, is subject to afof not more than $250,000 or
imprisonment for not more than 15 years, or buthhe case of a second or subsequent
conviction for a knowing endangerment violatiomeason shall be subject to a fine of not
more than $500,000 or by imprisonment of not mbeant30 years, or both; an
organization, as defined in Section 309(c)(3)(B)6f the Act, shall, upon conviction of
violating the imminent danger provision be subjeca fine of not more than $1,000,000
for a first violation and up to $2,000,000 for sed@r subsequent convictions;

4.  Any person who: falsifies, tampers with, oplingly renders inaccurate any monitoring
device or method required to be maintained undsrmarmit, or knowingly makes any
false statement, representation, or certificatioariy record or other document submitted
or required to be maintained under this permitiidimg monitoring reports or reports of
compliance or non-compliance, shall, upon convittize punished by a fine of not more
than $10,000, or by imprisonment for not more tBarears, or both. If a conviction of a
person is for a violation committed after a firshwiction of such person under this
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paragraph, punishment is a fine of not more thah@M per day of violation, or by
imprisonment of not more than 4 years, or both.

Administrative Penaltiesfor Violations of Permit Conditions. In addition to administrative
penalties for violations of State water pollutiantrol laws set forth in Section 9-342 of the
Environment Article, Annotated Code of Marylandg tBlean Water Act provides that any
person who violates a permit condition implementegtions 301, 302, 306, 307, 308, 318, or
405 of the Act is subject to an administrative pggnas follows:

1. Class | Penalty. Not to exceed the maximum amoauntsorized by Section 309(g)(2)(A) of
the Act and the Federal Civil Penalties Inflatiodjdstment Act (28 U.S.C. § 2461 note) as
amended by the Debt Collection Improvement Actl(3%.C. § 3701 note) (currently
$16,000 per violation, with the maximum amount oy £lass | penalty assessed not to
exceed $37,500).

2. Class Il Penalty. Not to exceed the maximum amoautkorized by Section 309(g)(2)(B)
of the Act and the Federal Civil Penalties Inflatiddjustment Act (28 U.S.C. § 2461 note)
as amended by the Debt Collection Improvement 3¢tld.S.C. § 3701 note) (currently
$16,000 per day for each day during which the tiofacontinues, with the maximum
amount of any Class Il penalty not to exceed $1®1),5

Permit Actions. This permit may be modified, revoked and reissoederminated for cause.
The filing of a request by the permittee for a pgmuodification, revocation, reissuance, or
termination, or a notification of planned changeamticipated honcompliance does not stay
any permit condition.

Part VII. REOPENER CLAUSE

At any time at the discretion of MDE or the U.SvEanmental Protection Agency, or if there is
evidence indicating that stormwater dischargesai#éd by this permit cause, have the
reasonable potential to cause or contribute taxaarsion above any applicable water quality
standard, MDE may require the owner or operat@uech discharge to obtain an individual permit
or alternative general permit coverage in accordanvith Part |. C. of this permit. Alternatively,
MDE may revoke this permit or modify this permititelude different limitations and
requirements, in accordance with the proceduretaowd in COMAR 26.08.04.10 and 40 C.F.R.
8§ 122.62, 122.63, 122.64 and 124.5.

Part VIII. AUTHORITY TO ISSUE GENERAL NPDESPERMITS

On September 5, 1974, the Administrator of the EPpAroved the proposal submitted by the State
of Maryland for the operation of a permit prograsndischarges into navigable waters under
Section 402 of the federal Clean Water Act, 33 O.S&ection 1342. On May 15, 1989, EPA and
Maryland entered into a superseding Memorandumgoédment for such discharges. On
September 30, 1990, the Administrator of the EPprayed the proposal submitted by the State
of Maryland for the operation of a general permggram. Under the approvals described above,
this general discharge permit is both a State afyMad general discharge permit and an NPDES
general discharge permit.

Part | X. DEFINITIONS

The following words and terms used in this chapi@ve the following meanings unless the context
clearly indicates otherwise. Terms used in thigmittand not otherwise defined herein shall hawe th
meaning attributed to them in 40 C.F.R. Part 122.

1.

"Administration" means the Maryland Departmenthed Environment, Water Management
Administration.

“Appropriate approval authority” means the statéooal government agency that has authority to
review and approve Erosion and Sediment ContraiPéend Stormwater Management Plans.
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3. "Construction Activity" means clearing, gradingcaxating, or other earth disturbing activities
that result in a land disturbance equal to or greilitan one acre, including the disturbance of less
than one acre of land that is part of a larger complan of development or sale that will
ultimately disturb more than one acre. Construc#otivity includes construction-related
activities that specifically support the constrantactivity and involve earth disturbance or
pollutant-generating activities of their own, arahdnclude activities associated with equipment
staging yards, materials storage areas, excavadtetial disposal areas, and borrow areas.
Construction activity does not include earth disturce for agricultural and silvicultural
production activities such as for orchards, cutédacrops, pastures, range lands, and forest lands,
unless those activities involve construction ofistures, roads, or other appurtenances.

4. "CWA" means the federal Clean Water Act, 33 U.&1251et seq., or the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act or the Amendments to the @l&sater Act, and regulations promulgated
thereunder.

5. "Director" means the Regional Administrator, ther®tary of the Maryland Department of the
Environment, or an authorized representative.

6. “Larger common plan of development or sale” meanaraa where multiple separate and distinct
construction activities are occurring under oneapl&he “plan” in a common plan of
development or sale is broadly defined as any amgraent or piece of documentation (including
a sign, public notice or hearing, sales pitch, @ikement, drawing, permit application, zoning
request, computer design, etc.) or physical dertiarcéincluding boundary signs, lot stakes,
surveyor markings, etc.) indicating that construttactivities may occur on a specific plot.

7. “Permanent stabilization” means that all soil dibing activities at the site have been completed
and the following criteria are met, whichever issnstringent:

a. The site meets the stabilization requirementsénaghproved plans;

b. The site meets stabilization requirements in COM2&RL7.01.07.B.6(f), even if
approved plans have a less stringent requiremeat@®MAR 26.17.01.08.G), and in
the 2011 Standards and Specifications for Soil Eroaiath Sediment Control or any
updated standards issued by MDE (after their effectate); or

c. Either of the two following criteria are met:

(1) A uniform (e.g,, evenly distributed, without largare areas) perennial vegetative
cover with a density of 70 percent of the nativekgaound vegetative cover for the
area has been established on all unpaved areaseaminot covered by permanent
structures, or

(2) Equivalent permanent stabilization measures (sa¢heuse of riprap, gabions, or
geotextiles) have been employed.

(3) When background native vegetation will cover ldent100 percent of the ground
(e.g., arid areas, beaches), the 70 percent caverégria is adjusted as follows: if
the native vegetation covers 50 percent of thergtpdO percent of 50 percent (0.70
X 0.50 = 0.35) would require 35 percent total cdieerfinal stabilization. On a
beach with no natural vegetation, no stabilizat®required.

d. For construction projects on land used for agngaltpurposes (e.g., pipelines across
crop or range land, staging areas for highway cooson, etc.), final stabilization may
be accomplished by returning the disturbed lanitstpreconstruction agricultural use.
Areas disturbed that were not previously used @picaltural activities, such as buffer
strips immediately adjacent to “water of the UditStates,” and areas which are not
being returned to their preconstruction agricultuse must meet the final stabilization
criteria (a), (b), or (c) above.

8. "Person" is as defined in COMAR 26.17.01 (Erosind &ediment Control) and COMAR
26.17.02 (Stormwater Management).
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10.

11.

12.

13.

“Plans” means a permittee’s Erosion and SedimentrGbPlan and Stormwater Management
Plan, collectively.

"Project" means the total area upon which congtraocctivity will occur through stages or phases
over time.

“Site” means any area where Permittee engagesnst@mtion Activity and where coverage
under an applicable permit is required.

"Stormwater" means precipitation runoff, snowmataff, and surface runoff and drainage.

"Stormwater Associated with Construction Activityleans the discharge from any conveyance
which is used for collecting and conveying stormewvand which is directly related to clearing,
grading, and/or excavation activities.
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~~  Jay-Sakai, Director
Mater Management Administration
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